AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

BOROUGH OF SEASIDE PARK,

A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

AND

NEW JERSEY STATE POLICEMAN'S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION

LOCAL NO. 182

JANUARY 1, 2022 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE	3
ARTICLE 1 – DEFINITIONS	3
ARTICLE II - PBA RIGHTS AND RECOGNITION	4
ARTICLE III - RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES	4
ARTICLE IV - NEGOTIATING PROCEDURES6	
ARTICLE V – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES	.6
ARTICLE VI – LONGEVITY	.8
ARTICLE VII - OVERTIME AND COMPENSATION TIME	.9
ARTICLE VIII - VACATIONS	.11
ARTICLE IX - HOLIDAYS	.12
ARTICLE X – SICK LEAVE	.12
ARTICLE XI – BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	16
ARTICLE XII – PERSONAL LEAVE1	16
ARTICLE XIII – WORK INCURRED INJURY	
ARTICLE XIV - MEDICAL INSURANCE PLAN	
ARTICLE XV – SALARY	.20
ARTICLE XVI – UNIFORM ALLOWANCE	21
ARTICLE XVII - WORKING CONDITIONS AND VEHICLES	. 22
ARTICLE XVIII - TUITION REIMBURSEMENT	22
ARTICLE XIX - EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE	23
ARTICLE XX - LIABILITY INSURANCE	23
ARTICLE XXI - RIGHT TO INSPECT PERSONNEL FILES	23
ARTICLE XXII – PBA MEETINGS	24
ARTICLE XXIII – STAFF ASSIGNMENTS	.25
ARTICLE XXIV - NON-DISCRIMINATION	26
ARTICLE XXV - SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS	26
ARTICLE XXVI – TERM AND RENEWAL	26
APPENDIX A	28
APPENDIX B	28

PREAMBLE

3035

This Agreement made this ______ day of ______ day of ______ by and between the Borough of Seaside Park in Ocean County, a municipal corporation of the State of New Jersey hereinafter referred to as the "Borough" and New Jersey State Policeman's Benevolent Association, Local No. 182, the duly recognized representative of all full-time sworn law enforcement personnel except the Chief of Police.

ARTICLE 1- DEFINITIONS

- A. "Employer" means the Borough of Seaside Park;
- B. "PBA" or "Association" means the PBA Local No. 182;
- C. "Employee" means any sworn, full-time permanently appointed law enforcement personnel except the Chief of Police;
- D. "Department" means the Police Department of the Borough of Seaside Park;
- E. "Chief" means the Chief of Police of the Borough of Seaside Park;
- F. "Grievance" means any complaint or dispute between the employer and any employee or the PBA with respect to the interpretation, application, or violation of any of the provisions of this agreement; or any rule, regulation, policy, or administrative decision which affects the terms and conditions of any unit employee;
- G. "Grievant" means a person who has filed a grievance as hereinbefore defined;
- H. "Mayor and Council" means the governing body of the Borough of Seaside Park; and
- I. "Public Safety Committee" is the duly organized committee of the Mayor

and council of the Borough of Seaside Park.

ARTICLE II - PBA RIGHTS AND RECOGNITION

The Borough hereby recognizes the PBA as the exclusive representative for all full-time permanently appointed law enforcement personnel except the Chief of Police of the Borough of Seaside Park Police Department. The PBA shall have all those rights hereinafter set forth.

ARTICLE III - RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

<u>Section 1</u>. That it is the intention of the parties to memorialize in this contract the terms of employment between the Borough and the PBA so as to reduce to writing current pay scales, working hours, and other terms of employment, most of which are of long standing custom and practice which will promote and continue harmonious relationship between them.

<u>Section 2</u>. That the Borough, on its behalf and on behalf of the citizens of the Borough of Seaside Park, hereby retains and reserves, unto itself without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibility conferred upon and vested in it by the Laws and Constitution of the State of new jersey and of the United States of America.

Section 3. That the exercise of the foregoing powers, authority, duties and responsibilities by the borough and the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practice in the furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection herewith, shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent that such specific express terms hereof are in

conformity with the Constitution and the Laws of the State of New Jersey and of the United States of America.

Section 4. That nothing contained herein shall be considered to deny or restrict the Borough of its rights, responsibilities, and the authority under the laws of the State of New Jersey or under any local law as they pertain to the Borough and it is the intention of both parties hereto that this Agreement be construed in harmony with the rules and regulations of the New Jersey Department of Personnel, formerly known as the Civil Service Commission.

Section 5. Subject to the rules and regulations of Seaside Park Police Department, Title 11A of the New Jersey Statutes Annotated, and sequences, no member of the PBA Local No. 182 shall be disciplined, suspended, reprimanded or denied any benefit as outlined within the collective Agreement without just cause. Any such action by any agent of the Borough shall be subject to the grievance procedure herein set forth under Article V of this Agreement.

<u>Section 6</u>. This Agreement shall not be modified in whole or in part by the parties except by an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties.

<u>Section 7</u>. The Borough agrees that there will be no discrimination, and that all practices, procedures and policies of the Borough shall clearly exemplify that there is no discrimination in hiring, training, assignment, promotion, transfer or discipline or police or in application, or administration of this Agreement on the basis of race, creed, religion, national origin, sex, domicile, marital status, are or sexual orientation.

Section 8. <u>Preservation of Rights:</u> Unless a contrary intent is expressed in this agreement, all benefits, rights, duties, obligations and terms and conditions of employment which were in effect on the effective date of this contract shall continue in

effect, unless the parties mutually agree in writing to the contrary.

ARTICLE IV - NEGOTIATING PROCEDURES

<u>Section 1</u>. Neither party shall have control over the selection of the negotiating representatives of the other party and each party agrees that its representatives be clothed with all necessary power and authority to make proposals and make further counterproposals in the course of negotiations, with final approval of the contract to be made by the Borough at an open public meeting and by the PBA of a meeting of its membership.

<u>Section 2</u>. This Agreement represents and incorporates the complete and final understanding and settlement by the parties of all bargaining issues which were or could have been the subject of negotiations. During the term of this Agreement, neither party will be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter, whether or not covered by this Agreement, and whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

Section 3. Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, all conditions of employment heretofore established by the rules, regulations, policies and practices of the Borough of Seaside Park shall continue and be maintained in effect as though set forth at length herein and nothing provided herein shall be interpreted or construed so as to eliminate, reduce or otherwise detract from any benefit to either party existing prior to the effective date of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

<u>Section 1</u>. No grievance can be instituted by any unit member after fifteen (15) days beyond notice of the occurrence of the issue being grieved.

For the purposes of this Agreement, "grievance" means any complaint

or dispute between the employer and any employee or the PBA with respect to the interpretation, application, or violation of any of the provisions of this agreement; or any rule, regulation, policy, or administrative decision which affects the terms and conditions of any unit employee.

Minor disciplinary matters of less than five (5) days of fine or suspension or equivalent thereof shall be included in this grievance procedure.

<u>Section 2</u>. If at any step within the grievance procedure hereinafter outlined, management's decision is not appealed within the appropriate time, such grievance shall be considered closed and there shall be no further appeal or review.

Section 3. Grievance Steps:

- **Step1.** A grievant, the president of the Association or his or her duly designated representative shall present in writing the grievance to the shift supervisor of the aggrieved Employee. With the mutual consent of both parties, discussion may ensue. The supervisor, or his or her duly designated representative, shall answer the grievance in writing within five (5) days after receipt of the grievance.
- Step 2. If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, or if no answer has been received by the grievant within five (5) days, the grievant shall present in writing the grievance to the Chief of Police within three (3) days receipt of the Step 1 answer. With the mutual consent of both parties, discussion may ensue. The Chief of Police shall answer the grievance in writing within five (5) days after receipt of the grievance.
- **Step 3.** If the grievance is not resolved at Step 2, or if no answer has been received by the grievant within the time set forth in Step 2, the grievant shall present in

writing the grievance to the Police Committee within three (3) days receipt of the Step 2 answer. With the mutual consent of both parties, discussion may ensue. The Chairman of the Police Committee, or his or her duly designated representative, shall answer the grievance in writing within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the grievance.

Step 4. If the grievance is not resolved at Step 3, or if no answer has been received by the grievant within the time set forth in Step 3, the grievant shall present in writing the grievance of the Mayor and Council within three (3) days receipt of Step 3 answer. With the mutual consent of both parties, discussion may ensue. The duly designated representative of the Mayor and Council shall answer the grievance in writing within twenty-one (21) days after receipt of the grievance.

Step 5. If the grievance is not resolved at Step 4, or if no answer has been received by the grievant within the time set forth in Step 4, the grievant shall present in writing the grievance to the New Jersey Public Employment Relations Commission to be resolved according to its rules and regulations.

The decision of the appointed PERC arbitrator shall be final and binding on both parties. The arbitrator shall issue his or her decision in writing approximately thirty (30) days after the close of the proceedings.

In the event that a decision or administration action involves a class of officers, the grievance shall be instituted at the level in which the relief sought can be granted.

ARTICLE VI-LONGEVITY

The longevity benefit for all qualifying bargaining unit members shall be as follows:

One and one-half percent (1.5%) upon completion of ten (10) years of service (calculated on the individual Officer's base salary)

Two percent (2.0%) upon completion of fifteen (15) years of service (calculated on the individual Officer's base salary)

Two and one-half percent (2.5%) upon completion of twenty (20) years of service (calculated on the individual Officer's base salary)

Three percent (3.0%) upon completion of twenty-four (24) years of service (calculated on the individual Officer's base salary)

Longevity shall be eliminated for all officers hired by the Borough after September 1, 2016. Longevity shall only be paid to those who were employed by the Borough as police officers prior to September 1, 2016.

ARTICLE VII - OVERTIME AND COMPENSATION TIME

Section 1. Each employee shall be paid overtime pay at the rate of one and one- half (1½) times the actual time worked, for:

- a) Work performed in any consecutive twenty-four (24) period in excess of the regular work day of eight hours for employees scheduled on eight hour shift.
- b) Work performed in any one week period in excess of forty (40) hours for employees scheduled on an eight hour shift.
- c) Work performed in any consecutive twenty-four (24) period

- in excess of the regular workday of twelve hours for employees scheduled on a 12-hour shift.
- d) Work performed in any work period in excess of eighty-four hours for employees scheduled on a 12 hour shift.

<u>Section 2</u>. For all Court appearances required of an Employee when he or she is off duty, overtime compensation shall be paid as follows:

- a) Whenever an Employee is required to prepare for or attend Court proceedings on off-duty time, said Employee shall be paid at the overtime rate for all time so spent. The minimum compensation for such Court preparation or duty shall be three (3) hours at the overtime rate. This provision is meant to cover all types of Court-related issues, phone calls, picking up ticket books, Grand Jury and any other court-related or administrative related issues which is the result of law enforcement duty.
- b) During those months when Court is in session once a week, each Employee shall schedule his or her Court appearances, when practical, for those days when he or she is on duty.

Section 3. In all instances when an Employee is scheduled to be off duty but is called in to work extra hours, the employee shall be paid overtime compensation for the actual time spent working extra hours but in no event shall the compensation be less than two (2) hours at an overtime rate. The overtime rate shall be one and one-half (1½) times on the Employee's hourly rate of pay.

Section 4. In lieu of overtime pay, the Employee may elect to accept compensation time which shall be calculated at the same rate as overtime, as set forth above. No Employee shall be ordered to accept compensation time for work in excess of his or her regularly scheduled work week. An Employee may be offered compensation time for work in excess of his or her regularly scheduled work week but, in that event, the Employee shall have the absolute right to decline the opportunity of additional work hours. The Department may order an Employee to work additional hours only when it is prepared to pay overtime pay.

Section 5. Each Employee shall be entitled to accumulate compensatory time up to a maximum of 480 hours, provided that compensation time must be used within twelve (12) months of the date it was earned.

Section 6. Employees scheduled to a 12 hour shift will be entitled to 108 hours of Kelly time to be available January 1 of each year. Use of Kelly time is subject to staffing needs and must receive prior approval from the Chief. Kelly time will not accumulate from year to year. No compensation shall be provided for any Kelly time for any reason.

ARTICLE VIII - VACATIONS

<u>Section 1</u>. Each Employee shall be granted annual paid vacation based on years of continuous full-time service within the Borough in accordance with the following schedule:

Length of Service	Vacation Time
Up to 1 year 1 to 4 years	1 day for each month employed 12 days
5 to 9 years	15 days

10 to 14 years	18 days
15 to 20 years	20 days
21 and over	1 day for each year of service

During the initial calendar year of service, the maximum twelve days indicated above shall be earned and credited at the rate of one (1) day for each full month of service.

Section 2.

- a) Selection of vacation schedule shall be based on seniority; Seniority shall be determined initially on the basis of rank. For Employees of equal rank, seniority shall be determined on the amount of time the employee has held the rank; and
- b) No employee may accumulate and carry over vacation time from one year to the next without the approval of the Chief of Police.
- c) Vacation utilization shall be permitted during the entire year subject to the staffing needs and reasonable discretion of the Chief of Police.

<u>ARTICLE IX – HOLIDAYS</u>

<u>Section 1</u>. The following days are recognized as holidays. An Employee may elect to receive payment at his regular rate of pay or may elect vacation time off in lieu of said paid holidays.

- 1. New Year's Day
- 8. Labor Day
- Martin Luther King Day
- 9. Columbus Day

3.	Lincoln's Birthday	10.	General Election Day
4.	Washington's Birthday	11.	Veteran's Day
5.	Good Friday	12.	Thanksgiving Day
6.	Memorial Day	13.	Day after Thanksgiving
7.	Independence Day	14.	Christmas Day

<u>Section 2.</u> If an Employee is scheduled to work any holiday granted to Municipal Employees, said Employee, in addition to his/her other regular pay, will be entitled to four (4) hours compensatory time off.

<u>Section 3.</u> In the event the Borough of Seaside Park declares or grants any additional holiday time to other Municipal Employees then such additional time shall be made available to Police personnel covered by this Agreement.

ARTICLE X - SICK LEAVE

Section 1. Employees covered by this Agreement are granted fifteen (15) working days sick leave, with pay, each calendar year for non-duty connected injuries or illnesses.

Section 2. Any Employee suffering from any non-work related injury or illness shall be entitled to leave without pay for a period of six (6) months in accordance with the provisions of New Jersey State Statutes. Such leave may be renewed by the governing body for an additional period not to exceed six (6) months but no further renewal or extension of such leave may be granted except upon approval by the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Seaside Park. Benefits afforded to an Employee suffering from a non-work related injury shall be governed according to the applicable statutes, rules and regulations of the State of New Jersey in force and effect at the time of the injury or illness. In all instances, the grant or denial of leave of absence shall be governed by N.J.S.A. 11A:1-1 and the regulations there under.

Section 3. If an Employee dies while in the employ of the Borough of Seaside Park, the wife/husband or the designated beneficiary of said Employee shall be entitled to be compensated for one-hundred percent (100%) of any unused sick leave accumulated by said Employee at his or her current rate of base pay, without limitation.

Section 1. In computing the amount of sick leave, there shall be deducted the amount of money, if any, which said employee is paid under provisions of the Worker's Compensation Act, N.J.S.A. 34:15-1 et seq. for temporary disabilities during the period of time said Employees will be absent from work on sick leave.

Section 5. Sick leave is hereby defined to mean, absence from post of duty of an Employee due to illness, accident, exposure to contagious disease or attendance upon an Employee's spouse and children being seriously ill or injured requiring the care and attendance of the Employee. Sick leave excludes accidents, injuries or occupational exposure covered by the Workers' Compensation Act, N.J.S.A, 34:15-1 et seq.

<u>Section 6</u>. A certification of a reputable physician in attendance may be required as proof of illness of the Employee or of need of his or her immediate family for leave under the following conditions:

- a) Leave taken the day immediately prior to or immediately after the authorized leave;
- b) Three (3) consecutive days absence on sick leave;
- c) Absence on sick leave for three (3) days or more in any one month; and
- d) Said certificates may be required by the Chief of Police or the governing body may require an Employee to be examined by a physician of the

governing body's choice and at its own expense.

Section 7. No Employee shall be allowed to work and endanger the health and well-being of other Employees and if the Employee's condition warrants, the Employee may be directed to take sick leave. The Chief of Police may direct the Employee to a designated physician for an opinion as to the eligibility of the Employee to be absent from work.

<u>Section 8</u>. Sick Leave with pay shall not be allowed under the following conditions:

- a) When the Employee, under medical care, fails to carry out the reasonable orders of the attending physician;
- b) When in the opinion of the designated physician, the disability or illness is not of sufficient severity to justify the Employee's absence from duty; and
- c) When an Employee does not report to the designated physician in a reasonable time after being ordered to do so.

Section 9. The recommendation of the Borough's designated physician, as well as those of the attending physician, as to the justification for the absence from duty on account of disability or illness or of the fitness of the employee to return to duty shall be considered by the Chief of Police. The Chief of Police reserves the right in such cases, where there is a difference of professional opinion between the Borough's designated physician and the personal physician of the Employee, to require the employee to submit to an examination by a third doctor, which examination shall be at the expense of the Borough.

Section 10. Sick leave shall not be allowed for such things as ordinary dental care nor for any other professional services that may be normally scheduled within the

Employee's regular off time. The utilization of sick leave for elective medical procedures will not be considered without sufficient medical evidence to substantiate the necessity of scheduling the medical or dental services during the work day.

<u>Section 11</u>. In charging an Employee with sick leave the minimum unit considered is two hours.

Section 12. Sick leave in excess of the time prescribed by this Agreement may be granted in the reasonable discretion of the Chief of Police, with the approval of the governing body, when warranted by the Employee's overall work record.

Section 13. If an Employee is absent from work for reasons that entitle him or her to sick leave, the Chief of Police or his or her designated representative shall be notified as early as reasonably possible prior to the start of the scheduled work shift from which he or she is absent. Failure to so notify the Chief of Police or his or her designated representative may be cause for denial of the use of sick leave for that absence and constitute cause for disciplinary action. An Employee who is absent three (3) consecutive days or more and does not notify the Chief of Police or some responsible representative of the Borough on any of the first five (5) days will be subject to dismissal in accordance with the regulations promulgated by the Department of Personnel. Nothing in this section shall diminish the rights conferred upon Employees by the New Jersey Administrative Code.

<u>ARTICLE XI - BEREAVEMENT LEAVE</u>

Section 1. In the event of a death in his or her immediate family, as hereinafter defined, an Employee shall be granted five (5) days from duty, from date of death or funeral, with pay, which days shall not be charged against either sick leave or vacation time.

<u>Section 2</u>. Immediate family is defined as parent, spouse, child, brother, sister,

grandparents, spouse's parents, spouse's brother, spouse's sister, and spouse's grandparents.

ARTICLE XII - PERSONAL LEAVE

<u>Section 1</u>. Each Employee shall be entitled to an annual paid personal leave of five (5) days per annum. Personal leave use shall be granted with a minimum of four (4) hours' notice.

Section 2. Personal leave shall be credited at the beginning of each calendar year in anticipation of continued service but shall be earned on a prorated basis for each full month of service and shall be adjusted for any Employee who leaves the service of the Borough before the end of the calendar year. Personal leave credits shall not accrue after an Employee has resigned or retired although the Employee is retained on the payroll until exhaustion of vacation or other compensatory leave. Personal leave credits shall not accrue during a leave of absence without pay or suspension. Personal leave must be used during the calendar year and shall not accumulate from year to year.

ARTICLE XIII - WORK INCURRED INJURY

When an Employee covered under this Agreement suffers a work-connected injury or disability, the Employer shall continue such Employee at full pay, during the continuance of such Employee's inability to work, for a period of up to one year. During this period of time, all temporary disability benefits accruing under the provisions of Workers' Compensation Act shall be paid over to the Employer. Effective January 1, 2003, each Employee shall be entitled to annual paid personnel leave of five (5) days in each calendar year.

The Employee shall be required to present evidence by a certificate of a

responsible physician that he or she is unable to work and the Employer may reasonable require the said Employee to present such certificates from time to time.

In the event the employee contents that he or she is entitled to a period of disability beyond the period established by the treating physician, or a physician employed by the Employer or by its insurance carrier, then, and in that even, the burden shall be upon the Employee to establish such additional period of disability by obtaining a judgment in the Division of Workers' Compensation establishing such further period of disability and such finding by the Division of Workers' Compensation, or by a final decision of the last reviewing court shall be binding upon the parties.

For the purposes of this Article, injury or illness incurred while the Employee is attending an Employer sanctioned training program, shall be considered in the line of duty.

In the event a dispute arises as to whether an absence shall be computed or designated as sick leave or as an injury on duty, the parties agree to be bound by the decision of an appropriate Workers' Compensation judgment, or, if there is an appeal there from, the final decision of the last reviewing court.

An injury on duty requiring time off for treatment, recuperation or rehabilitation shall not be considered as sick leave or a sick or sick leave occasion under the terms of the sick leave policy heretofore agreed upon between the parties.

ARTICLE XIV - MEDICAL INSURANCE PLAN

Section 1. The Borough shall continue to provide hospital, medical and prescription insurance as presently provided or its equivalent or better with the New Jersey Health Benefits Plan.

a) Dental and vision care insurance shall be as presently provided to be

- equivalent or better than.
- b) Selection of an available health plan shall be made by each Employee on an annual basis during the designated enrollment period in accordance with the requirements of the State Health Benefit Plan.

Section 2. Each Employee shall have the sole individual discretion to opt out of Employer insurance coverage. The opt out shall be in two separate categories of insurance. Category 1 shall be defined as Health Insurance. Category 2 shall be defined as Dental, Prescription, Optical Benefits Package. As a condition of exercising the opt out option on Category 1 coverage, Health Insurance, the Employee wishing to exercise said option shall be required to prove that said Employee, and family, where appropriate, has comparable alternate coverage. If such comparable alternate coverage cannot be established, then the opt out option shall not exist as to said Employee at that time. Equivalent coverage is not a condition of exercising Category 2 coverage option (Dental, Prescription Optical).

The following rule shall not apply:

- A. There shall be two (2) dates each year in which an Employee may exercise to opt out of coverage or to opt back into coverage. The dates are effective January 1 of each year and July 1 of each year. An Employee wishing to opt out of Category 1 or Category 2 coverage effective January 1 shall advise the Employer not later than the preceding December 1st An Employee wishing to opt in or out effective July 1 of a given year shall advise the Employer not later than June 1st of the same year.
- B. In addition to the opt in/opt out listed above, each employee who has opted

out will have the individual option to opt back into coverage in the event of a life changing event, such as death in family, termination of alternate coverage, etc.

C. Employees who elect to opt out of coverage Category 1 (Health Insurance) shall be provided with the cash payment sum of \$3,000 per year said opt out. Employees who elect to opt out of coverage Category 2 (Dental, Prescription, Optical) shall be paid a lump sum of \$3,000 per year. Said payment entitlements shall be paid in two equal installments during the course of a calendar year where coverage's have been opted out. Payment shall be made by direct check to the Employee. Where a part of a year is opted out, or in the event of a life changing event with an Employee opting back in, the payment schedule provided shall be prorated.

Section 3. The Public Employer agrees to withhold and administer a voluntary disability plan now known as AFLAC, or equivalent plan, with the respective Employee desiring said optional coverage to pay the cost of said insurance coverage on January 1 and July 1 each year. At least 30 days' notice shall be provided to the Employer in the event of the exercising of any change.

Section 4. In the event there is a change of insurance carriers for health benefits for a carrier other than the NJSHBP if and after the Borough adopts the NJSHBP, any such change must be equal or better coverage to the NJSHBP. Enrollment in the New Jersey State Health Benefits Plan or any other carrier shall provide coverage at no premium cost or premium sharing by the Employee regardless (individual, husband and wife, family) unless and until same has been negotiated. Further, the Borough shall continue to provide dental insurance at the same level of benefits it currently provides.

Section 5. The Borough shall provide fully paid health benefits not including dental or vision to the employee and spouse upon retirement after (25) years of service to the Borough of Seaside Park and remain in effect until Employee becomes Medicare eligible. The health benefits so provided shall be the same or comparable health benefits that are in effect to pursuant to this Article at the point of the retiring Employee's last day of active service with the Borough of Seaside Park.

ARTICLE XV - SALARY

<u>Section 1</u>. The regular pay of an Employee shall be his or her annual salary divided by the number of regular pay periods during the calendar year covered by this Agreement.

Section 2. The year for determination of salary shall commence on the first day of January of each year. Any part of one year shall be considered a full year for determining salary status if the individual is employed prior to July 1st.

Section 3. The base annual pay for Employees covered by this Agreement shall be as set forth on Appendix A annexed.

Section 4.

2022 =	Effective January 1, 2022, the base salaries across the board, shall be increased by 3.0%.
2023 =	Effective January 1, 2023, the base salaries across the board, shall be increased by 3.0%.
2024 =	Effective January 1, 2024, the base salaries across the board, shall be increased by 3.0%.
2025 =	Effective January 1, 2025, the base salaries across the board, shall be increased by 3.0%.

The above increases are exclusive of increment, and retroactive to the date(s) referenced above, when applicable.

Section 4. Out of Rank Pay: Effective and retroactive to January 1, 2022, an officer will receive eight dollars per hour (\$8.00) for hours worked after three consecutive shifts working in working in a superior rank as recommended by the Chief and ratified via resolution by the Borough Council

<u>ARTICLE XVI - UNIFORM ALLOWANCE</u>

Section 1. It is in the best interest of all parties that each employee present a proper image to the general public.

Section 2. Effective January 2016, all Employees shall receive in each year of the Agreement a cleaning allowance in the amount of one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00) per year, payable directly to the Employee on the first day in January. The payment for cleaning allowance shall be pro-rated for any Employee appointed during the year. For the year 2015, this cleaning allowance shall be \$650.00.

<u>Section 3</u>. If in the performance of his or her duties, an Employee sustains any damage to or loss of personal property (*i.e.*, eyeglasses, wristwatch, etc.), or damage to or loss of any uniform item, the Borough will reimburse the Employee for repair or replacement of said property or item.

ARTICLE XVII - WORKING CONDITIONS AND VEHICLES

<u>Section 1</u>. Each police vehicle shall be equipped with rear window defrosters, power steering and additional interior lighting.

<u>Section 2.</u> All police patrol vehicles shall be in good working order and equipped with air conditioning.

Section 3. Air conditioning shall be provided in Police Headquarters.

<u>Section 4.</u> Security dividers between front passenger compartment and rear passenger compartment in each police vehicle shall be provided and shall be of a solid material, not screening or fencing.

ARTICLE XVIII - TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

<u>Section 1</u>. It is in the best interest of the Borough of Seaside Park to encourage employees to further their education in excess of a high school diploma, and to that end, to pay additional compensation to employees who successfully complete courses in such fields of study.

Section 2. All members who take courses leading toward a degree in a police related major/degree with the Police Chiefs approval from an accredited college or university shall be reimbursed one-half (1/2) of the amount expended for tuition per credit not to exceed \$100.00 reimbursement per credit. The reimbursement shall be payable upon presentation of evidence of successful completion of an approved course with a grade of "C" or better. Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days following the presentation of required proof.

ARTICLE XIX - EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE

<u>Section 1</u>. The Borough agrees to the addition of this Article provided the compensation is a "one-time bonus" for a degree in a police related major; provided a statement is included that there is no retroactivity for existing degrees; and provided the bonus is presented by the Borough Council at a Council meeting. The Borough proposes the following bonuses: \$500.00 for Associates Degree; \$1,000.00 for a Bachelors Degree;

ARTICLE XX - LIABILITY INSURANCE

<u>Section 1</u>. The Borough recognizes that liability insurance is a necessary part of municipal government.

Section 2. The Borough shall maintain liability insurance with coverage for the Employee for compensatory damages in an amount not less than one million dollars (\$1,000,000).

<u>ARTICLE XXI - RIGHT TO INSPECT PERSONNEL FILES</u>

<u>Section 1</u>. Any Employee covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to inspect his or her personnel file upon reasonable notice to and an appointment with the Chief of Police or his/her designee.

<u>Section 2</u>. The Borough and the Chief of Police hereby agree that only one personnel file shall be maintained on each Employee, which file shall remain in the sole custody of the Chief of Police.

Section 3. The Borough recognizes that personnel files of Employees are of an inherently confidential and sensitive nature. Accordingly, the Borough agrees that a personnel file shall not be disclosed to any person absent advance written consent of the Employee or Court order. This restriction shall not apply to the Borough Council, Administrator, any of the Borough's attorneys, not shall this restriction apply to payroll of health insurance records.

<u>Section 4</u>. In no event shall any disciplinary notice, written reprimand, adverse performance evaluation, a citizen's complaint and/or any other document which adversely

affects or portrays the Employee's performance or character be placed in the Employee's personnel file prior to review thereof by the Employee and placement of the Employee's initials on the said document.

Section 5. In the event any document referred to in Section 4 above is placed in an Employee's personnel file for which the Employee did not have a procedure to contest the information or allegations contained therein, the Employee shall be entitled to prepare a written response which shall be attached to the said documents and remain attached until such time as said document is removed from the Employee's personnel file, if ever.

<u>ARTICLE XXII - PBA MEETINGS</u>

- Section 1. The Borough agrees that the PBA Local #182 may use the Seaside Park Police Headquarters or the Borough Hall for PBA meetings.
- Section 2. The Borough agrees that on-duty police officers may attend such PBA meetings as long as the Employees remain available for duty.
- Section 3. The Chief of Police may limit the number of on-duty officers who attend.

 The Chief of Police shall be provided at least 48 hours' notice in the event on-duty members are attending.
- Section 4. Authorized representative of the PBA shall be released from work time with pay to attend State and County PBA meetings.

<u>ARTICLE XXIII - STAFF ASSIGNMENTS</u>

- <u>Section 1</u>. The Borough agrees that each Employee shall be entitled to reasonable advance notice of a change in his or her schedule, except in the event of an emergency situation or in the event of overtime.
- Section 2. The Borough agrees that shifts shall be awarded on the basis of seniority and, during the term of this Agreement, the following procedure is hereby

implemented:

- a) No later than July 31st of the year, each Employee shall submit to the Chief of Police his or her bid which consists of the Employees' first, second and third choices for the shift the Employee desires to work in the upcoming 12 months;
- b) The Chief of Police shall assign Employees to shifts on the basis of the Employees' shift bid and on the basis of seniority, which is defined below;
- c) Seniority shall be determined initially on the basis of rank. For Employees of the same rank, seniority shall be determined by the number of years the Employee has held the rank; and
- d) Final selection of shifts shall be made by the Chief of Police in order to prevent experience imbalances and to provide adequate staffing of officers for special assignments.

ARTICLE XXIV - NON-DISCRIMINATION

<u>Section 1</u>. The Borough and the PBA agree that there shall be no discrimination against any employee because of race, creed, color, religion, sex, national original or political affiliation.

<u>Section 2</u>. The Borough and the PBA agree that all Employees covered under this Agreement have the right without fear or penalty of reprisal to form, join and assist any Employee organization or to refrain from any such activity. There shall be no discrimination by the Borough or the PBA against any Employee because of the employee's membership or non-membership or activity or non-activity.

ARTICLE XXV - MATERNITY LEAVE

- A. Female Police Officers shall advise the Employer of a pregnancy. The rights of a female Police Officer shall include but not be limited to the following provisions:
 - The female Police Officer shall be permitted to work her normal duties so long as such work is permitted by a doctor's note. The doctor shall be a physician of the female Police Officer's own choosing.
 - 2. In addition to the other provisions of this Article, the female Police Officer, at her option, shall be permitted to use accumulated sick time, compensatory time off and any other accumulated time benefits which she may have during the period of her pregnancy and the period following childbirth.
 - Upon return to active duty status, the Officer shall be returned to work without loss of seniority or benefits and shall be returned to the same position as worked prior to utilizing leave.
 - 4. The female Police Officer shall at all times be kept at full benefits and shall be considered as on active duty for all computation purposes while utilizing paid leave, TDI, FLA and/or unpaid FMLA. The officer shall be responsible for payment of all premiums for health care coverage for any period of time for unpaid leave in excess of the employee's paid leave, TDI, FLA and FMLA unpaid leave and will not accrue any additional leave time. If the employee fails to pay the full amount of the premium, coverage will be terminated, and the employee will be advised of its COBRA entitlement..
 - Upon return to active duty status, the female Police Officer shall be placed in the same position which she held before departing for maternity status.
- B. In all cases a pregnant employee will be provided with all benefits and working conditions ordinarily extended to other employees, including employees who are disabled and

seeking an accommodation. Additionally all aspects of this clause will be interpreted in a manner that complies with any and all statues and regulations which impact persons who are pregnant and to the extent that any clause conflicts with such statutes or regulations the contract terms will be so amended.

C. Both male and female Police Officers shall be permitted such time and such terms and conditions as are provided under the Federal Family Leave Act and the New Jersey Temporary Disability Benefits Law.

<u>ARTICLE XXVI - SEPARABILITY AND SAVINGS</u>

In the event any Federal or State Legislation, government regulation, or court decision causes invalidation of any article or section of this Agreement, all other articles and sections not so invalidated shall remain in full force and effect.

<u>ARTICLE XXVII - TERM AND RENEWAL</u>

This Agreement shall have a term from <u>January 1, 2022</u> through <u>December 31, 2025</u>. If the parties have not executed a successor agreement by <u>December 31, 2025</u>, then this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until a successor agreement is executed.

Negotiations for a successor agreement shall be in accordance with the rules of the Public Employment Relations Commission.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have hereunto set their respective signatures and seal in the Borough of Seaside Park, County of Ocean, State of New Jersey on this day of				
ATTEST:	BOROUGH OF SEASIDE PARK			
Borough Clerk	Mayor			
ATTEST:	PBA Local No. 182			
Secretary, PBA Local No. 182	President, PBA Local No. 182			

Attachment A

BOROUGH OF SEASIDE PARK PBA SALARY GUIDE

Steps	2022	2023	2024	2025
Academy	47,000	47,000	47,000	47,000
1	56,085	57,767	59,500	61,285
2	60,245	62,052	63,914	65,831
3	64,405	66,337	68,327	65,377
4	68,565	70,622	72,741	74,923
5	72,725	74,907	77,154	79,469
6	76,885	79,192	81,568	84,015
7	81,046	83,477	84,015	86,535
8	85,206	87,762	90,395	93,107
9	89,366	92,047	94,808	97,652
10	93,526	96,332	99,222	102,199
11	97,686	100,617	103,636	106,745
12	101,846	104,902	108,049	111,290
13	106,007	109,187	112,463	115,837
14	110,167	113,472	116,876	120,382
15	114,328	117,758	121,291	124,930
Sgt.	123,951	127,670	131,500	135,445
Lt.	130,091	133,994	138,014	142,154